Public Document Pack

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Environment and Regeneration Overview and Scrutiny Committee

held on Monday, 10th February, 2020 at Council Chamber, Municipal Buildings, Earle Street, Crewe CW1 2BJ

PRESENT

Councillor JP Findlow (Chairman) Councillor L Crane (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors S Akers Smith, S Brookfield, J Buckley, T Dean, A Farrall, P Groves, S Hogben, M Hunter, D Jefferay, C Leach and K Parkinson

In attendance

Councillor L Crane-Deputy Portfolio Holder for Highways and Waste Councillor N Mannion-Portfolio Holder for Environment and Regeneration P Bayley-Director of Environment and Neighbourhood Services F Jordan-Executive Director-Place P Skates-Director of Growth & Enterprise

Prior to the start of the meeting the Chairman advised that there was a book of condolence in the reception of the municipal building for anyone to sign in respect of the death of Councillor B Roberts who had been the Portfolio Holder for Highways and Waste and a frequent attendee to the Environment and Regeneration Overview and Scrutiny Committee meetings.

Further to this the Democratic Services Officer on behalf of the Monitoring Officer gave the following advice in respect of purdah:-

Members and officers were aware that there was to be a by-election for Crewe South Ward on 27 February 2020 and therefore the pre-election period known as purdah currently applied. Given the items on the agenda, the officer reminded everyone that the pre-election publicity rules sought to prevent any perception that the Council's facilities and resources had been used or designed to affect public support for a political party or candidate.

57 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor L Braithwaite.

58 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting held on 20 January 2020 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman subject to point (v) under agenda item 6 Economic Strategy being amended to read as follows:-

'It was queried how, when the local plan strategy focused on numbers of dwellings rather than type of tenure, how the Council would influence tenure types as suggested in the economic strategy.'

And subject to the inclusion of the following point:-

'The theme 12 objective was to deliver the Visitor Economic Strategy. However, the current Visitor Economic Strategy covered the period 2016 -2020 and therefore expired this year. It was queried as to whether or not an update to the Visitor Economic Strategy was scheduled to be completed this year?'

(During consideration of the item, Councillor J Buckley arrived to the meeting).

59 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

60 WHIPPING DECLARATIONS

No declarations of a party whip were received.

61 PUBLIC SPEAKING/OPEN SESSION

Carol Jones attended the meeting and spoke in respect of matters relating to the health and safety of Crewe bus station.

In response the Director of Growth & Enterprise stated that he would address a number of issues raised by the speaker under item 6 on the agenda.

62 UPDATE ON TOWN CENTRE PLANS

The Director of Growth & Enterprise attended the meeting and gave a presentation on Crewe and Macclesfield town centres and the market towns.

In respect of Crewe town centre there were concerns that the redevelopment of the bus station was not being undertaken at the same time as the Royal arcade development. It was felt critical that given the current state of the bus station this was developed prior to work being undertaken on the town centre in order to encourage people into the town. Members felt strongly that the work on the bus station should take priority or at least be undertaken in conjunction with the redevelopment of the town centre and not after as was being proposed. Further questions were asked in respect of whether or not Arriva had a responsibility to maintain the station to an acceptable level, when was the Development Agreement due to be signed, how the community and Town Council would be involved

in the development of ideas to make of the towns fund or other grants/funding and lack of a twilight economy and what was being done to address this and what provision was being made for people to cycle into the new development.

In respect of Macclesfield town centre Members asked questions in respect of the revitalisation of the butter market, old police station and Lower Chestergate, the situation regarding Commercial Road depot, how the divide between Churchill Way and Lower Chestergate would be addressed, plans for cycling connectivity between the town centre and Alderley park and the funding situation regarding Macclesfield.

The reference to cycling within the development was welcomed but clarification was also sought as to whether or not the Travel Model Plan would be revisited as part of the process.

In respect of the market towns Members felt there had been considerable focus on the towns of Crewe and Macclesfield and that it was important for the Council to address the notion of other market towns 'feeling left behind' with specific references being made to the towns of Congleton, Knutsford, Nantwich and Wilmslow. Members outlined a number of issues which market towns were currently suffering from including problems with parking, the public realm, the condition of pavements and the number of vacant businesses. In addition to this it was felt that Neighbourhood Plans should be taken into account when deciding which towns would be included within the first phase of the production of the town centre vitality plans as they provided in-depth detailed information and therefore should be used as a starting point.

RESOLVED

That the update be noted.

(Prior to consideration of the following item, the meeting was adjourned for a short break).

63 CREWE HUB STATION UPDATE

The Head of High Growth City attended the meeting and gave a presentation updating Members on the Crewe Hub.

Included within the presentation was information on the opportunities, the essential components, the hub station scheme, the business case, the funding and financial proposition and the next steps.

Members raised matters relating to the funding of the project, involvement of local MP's, the design of the Crewe hub plaza, the Access Strategy, the linkages between the station and the town centre, anticipated numbers of jobs to be provided, the resources in place to deliver the project and whether or not there would be representations from Active Travel on the Integrated Programme Board and Sponsor Board.

RESOLVED

That the update be noted.

(During consideration of the item Councillors S Brookfield and K Parkinson left the meeting and did not return).

64 FORWARD PLAN

Consideration was given to the areas of the Forward Plan which fell within the remit of the Committee.

RESOLVED

That the Forward Plan be noted.

65 WORK PROGRAMME

Consideration was given to the work programme.

It was agreed that a report on the Vulnerable and Older Persons Housing Strategy 2020-2023 be included in the work programme for June.

RESOLVED

That the work programme be approved subject to the addition of the Vulnerable and Older Persons Housing Strategy 2020-2023.

The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 1.00 pm

Councillor JP Findlow (Chairman)